
 

 

 

 

VIRGIN ISLANDS WATER & POWER AUTHORITY 

PR-06-24 

TERRITORIAL LEAD SERVICE LINE SURVEY 

Date: 04/29/24 

ADDENDUM III 

Questions: 

1. The RFP references 162 unique water systems.  Is the Offeror expected to prepare 162 
unique service line inventories (i.e., spreadsheets) by the October 16, 2024, compliance 
deadline?  
Response:  The ‘162 CWSs’ appears to be a misprint.  The scope of this work is the 
WAPA Water Distribution System in the St. Thomas- St. John and St. Croix districts.  
Bidders can use the EPA service line inventory (SLI) templates for small community 
water systems (CWS) to capture and present the data from the survey. 
 

2. What format will the final deliverable of the service line inventories be in? For example, the 
EPA service line inventory spreadsheet template? Or has VI WAPA created their own service 
line inventory spreadsheet template?  
Response:  The EPA service line inventory spreadsheet template is preferred.  Bidders 
can use the EPA service line inventory (SLI) templates for small community water 
systems (CWS) to capture and present the data from the survey. 
 

 

3. What is the size distribution of the 162 CWSs, based on population served? 
a. i.e., # of very small (<500), # of small (501-3,300), # of medium (3,301-10,000), # of 

large (10,001-100,000) 
Response:  The estimated population served is approximately 40,000. 

 
4. Does VI WAPA have a comprehensive list of service addresses for all 162 unique water 

systems, or will the Offeror need to gather this information from each water system and 
clean the data?  
Response:  WAPA has water distribution record maps and information for active water 
accounts. 

https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2022-08/Inventory%20Template_FINAL_0.xlsx


 

5. Does VI WAPA have contact information for each water system or will the Offeror be 
responsible for soliciting this information?  
Response:  Certain information will be provided upon request through WAPA Water 
Distribution Department. 

 
 
 

6. Is there a specific lead-ban date that was adopted by the US Virgin Islands? What % of 
service lines are estimated to have been installed after this date? 
Response:  We do not know of any lead ban date adopted by the US Virgin Islands apart 
from the EPA rules and guidelines. 

 
 

7. Can VI WAPA provide a list of attendees from the pre-bid meeting?   
Response:  Because the meeting is non mandatory we are not required to take 
attendance . 
 

8. Do all 162 CWSs store their records (for example, as-built drawings) at individual locations 
or is there a centralized location for record keeping streamlining the inventory process? 
Does VI WAPA maintain any water system records? 
Response:  Please note response to question #1. WAPA maintain limited record maps  
of the water distribution system and certain account information. 
 

9. Based on the requirements of the LCRR, limited time until the compliance deadline, and 
breadth of the scope, would VI WAPA be open to a response that provides an alternative 
approach that meets compliance requirements by October 16, 2024? 
Response:  This a request for proposal (RFP) which allows bidders to present their best 
proposals to meet the requirements of this bid documents. 

 

10. LCRR only requires a comprehensive historical records review and identification of service 
line materials during normal operations prior to October 16th, 2024. These are the only 
required activities prior to October 16th, 2024. As a firm that has prepared over 800 service 
line inventories, these requirements are time and labor intensive. With the imminent 
compliance deadline, would VI WAPA consider delaying the potholing requirement noted in 
the RFP since it is not a compliance requirement prior to October 16th, 2024? Potholing 
could be incorporated to identify unknowns and complete the prior to 2027 as outlined in 
LCRI.  
Response:  Please see Addendum #1 to this RFP where we have suggested a 
representative sampling approach to meet the EPA guidelines. 

 

11. Would VI WAPA consider amending the pricing structure noted in the RFP to incorporate a 
more specific schedule of rates as proposed below?  
Response:  Please provide the pricing structure noted in the RFP as a minimum for 
consideration.  Additional information may be included in the bid. 



 
  

  
Project Management $/hour 
Initial Contact Meetings with Water Systems $/CWS 
Service Line Inventory Development & Submission $/hour 
Technical Assistance $/hour 
Development of Outreach and Education Materials $/hour 
In-Field Service Line Verification $/service line 
Mobilization to Systems/Travel $/day 
  
Inspection Materials (magnets, swabs, etc.)  
Printing/Mailing (door hangers, customer notifications, etc.)  
Sample Kits (School/CCF/Compliance)  
Pitcher Filters  
  

 

 

12. Section 6.0 Proposal Form noted in the RFP PR-06-24, page 4, mentions the inclusion of a 
Bid Bond, Performance Bond, and a Payment Bond. Are these bonds required for 
submission of a proposal? If so, can more details be provided on the bond requirements? 
Will a proposal be considered nonresponsive if these bonds are not provided with proposal 
submission? 
Response:  This project is considered a professional service contract; and as such, we 
do not require a bid bond, performance bond, or payment bond. 
 

13. The provision of pitcher filters and water quality sampling are required following a lead 
service line replacement, but these items are not mentioned in the scope of the RFP. Has VI 
WAPA considered how they want to approach this compliance requirement of LCRR? 
Response:  Filter distribution and water quality sampling outside of WAPA’s routine 
compliance sampling and testing per LCRR are not part of this scope of work. 
 

14. Can VI WAPA estimate the total number of schools and child care facilities across all three 
islands?  
Response:  Bidders will have to research this information. 
 
 

15. Across all three islands, have there been lead or copper exceedances in the last five years? 
Response: WAPA has records of the LCRR compliance testing reports over the last five 
years, which will be available during your investigation. 
 

16. Is WAPA electing to replace copper service lines even though it is not required under the 
LCRR? 



 Response:  Upon completion of this scope of work, WAPA will use this information to 
identify locations for replacement of lead/copper.  
 
 

17. What is the standard service line configuration used across all three islands? Are most 
service lines only visible through excavation, or are there instances where both sides of the 
service line can be seen via a meter box? 
Response:  The standard for service line installation is to bury pipes upstream and 
downstream of the meter box.   However, there are instances where these pipe are 
exposed.    
 

18. Does VI WAPA have an estimated budget (not to exceed) for the entire scope of work? 
Response:  Budgets cannot be disclosed. 

19. Will a proposal be considered nonresponsive if the offeror excludes a fixed cost of 
lead/GRR/copper service line replacements? The number of replacements needed is 
unknown until the service line inventory is underway and pricing replacements may be 
unnecessarily expensive or inaccurate.  
Response: Please refer to Addendum I. 
 

20. The EPA Drinking Water Infrastructure Needs Survey and Assessment 7th Report to 
Congress estimates that the USVI has 35,002 lead service lines. Can VI WAPA confirm this 
is accurate, as Addendum I for RFP PR-06-24 states “we have no records no knowledge of 
the presence of lead service lines in our systems” conflicts with the EPA’s report?  
Response: WAPA cannot confirm the numbers presented by the EPA’s report.  This 
investigation will shed greater light on the presence or absence of lead service lines.  

https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2023-09/Seventh%20DWINSA_September2023_Final.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2023-09/Seventh%20DWINSA_September2023_Final.pdf


 


